1933 INDUSTRIES INC.
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the years ended July 31, 2021 and 2020
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars)

Independent Auditor's Report

To the Shareholders of 1933 Industries Inc.:
Opinion
We have audited the consolidated financial statements of 1933 Industries Inc. and its subsidiaries (the "Company"),
which comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as at July 31, 2021 and the consolidated statements
of loss, comprehensive loss, changes in equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.
In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of the Company as at July 31, 2021 and its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.
Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements in Canada, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern
We draw attention to Note 1 in the consolidated financial statements, which indicates that the Company incurred a
net loss and negative cash flows from operations during the year ended July 31, 2021 and, as of that date, the
Company had an accumulated deficit. As stated in Note 1, these events or conditions, along with other matters as set
forth in Note 1, indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
Other Matter
The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended July 31, 2020 were audited by Davidson
and Company LLP of Vancouver, British Columbia, Canada. Davidson and Company LLP expressed an unmodified
opinion on those statements on November 27, 2020.
Other Information
Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises Management’s Discussion
and Analysis.
Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. We
obtained Management’s Discussion and Analysis prior to the date of this auditor’s report. If, based on the work we
have performed on this other information, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.
Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:











Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Company’s internal control.
Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.
Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.
Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Company to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Giacomo Angelini.

Burlington, Ontario

Chartered Professional Accountants

November 29, 2021

Licensed Public Accountants

1933 INDUSTRIES INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Expressed in Canadian dollars)
July 31,
2021

Note
ASSETS
Current
Cash
Receivables
Inventory
Biological assets
Prepaid expenses and deposits
Property and equipment
Goodwill

4
5
6
7,13(e)

Lease liability
Convertible debentures
Total liabilities
Shareholders’ equity
Share capital
Reserves
Accumulated other comprehensive (loss) income
Deficit
Equity attributable to shareholders of the Company
Non-controlling interest
Total Equity
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity

23
10
11

4,405,849
934,109
4,199,850
865,953
743,455
11,149,216

$

18,677,577
15,527,023

8
9

Total assets
LIABILITIES
Current
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Income tax payable
Current portion of lease liability
Warrant liability

$

July 31,
2020
2,761,542
988,009
2,274,307
810,332
954,730
7,788,920
22,094,842
16,700,708

$

45,353,816

$

46,584,470

$

1,381,208
488,899
459,553
380,146
2,709,806

$

1,387,547
295,088
1,682,635

10
12

13,176,655
4,234,819
20,121,280

14,526,481
10,923,172
27,132,288

13
13(d)

81,817,159
10,145,449
(1,320,710)
(64,649,281)
25,992,617
(760,081)
25,232,536

70,887,770
6,653,522
817,190
(57,996,162)
20,362,320
(910,138)
19,452,182

14
$

45,353,816

$

46,584,470

Events after the reporting period (note 24)
Approved on behalf of the Board of Directors and authorized for issuance on November 29, 2021:
“Signed”
Brian Farrell, Director

“Signed”
Paul Rosen, Director

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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1933 INDUSTRIES INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF LOSS
For the years ended July 31, 2021 and 2021
(Expressed in Canadian dollars, except share numbers)
Note

2021
11,975,021

5

8,323,630
3,651,391
(1,985,587)
3,154,163
4,819,967

9,365,413
2,597,112
(2,157)
(310,281)
2,284,674

3,760,968
417,064
1,497,013
1,241,853
1,025,074
1,999,514
107,194
498,471
(298,013)
(5,733)
427,459
(45,474)
10,625,390

8,653,102
947,546
4,222,756
1,125,603
1,782,803
2,630,871
1,067,107
2,185,640
(185,327)
53
22,430,154

(5,805,423)
(482,000)
(6,287,423)
(6,287,423)

(20,145,480)
128,050
(20,017,430)
(2,186,192)
(22,203,622)

Net income (loss) from continuing operations attributable to:
Shareholders of the Company
Non-controlling interest

(6,470,416)
182,993

(19,355,653)
(661,777)

Net income (loss) attributable to:
Shareholders of the Company
Non-controlling interest

(6,470,416)
182,993

(21,541,845)
(661,777)

(0.02)

(0.07)

-

(0.01)

Revenues
Cost of sales
Gross margin, excluding fair value adjustments
Fair value adjustment on sale of inventory
Fair value adjustment on biological assets
Gross margin
Expenses (income)
General and administration
Management and consulting fees
Wages and benefits
Professional fees
Share-based compensation
Interest expense
Accretion expense
Depreciation
Other income
Change in fair value of warrant liability
Impairment of property and equipment
Foreign exchange (gain) loss
Loss from continuing operations before income tax
Income tax expense
Deferred tax recovery
Net loss from continuing operations
Net loss from discontinued operations
Net loss for the year

Net loss from continuing operations per share
Basic and Diluted
Net loss from discontinued operations per share
Basic and Diluted
Net loss per share
Basic and Diluted
Weighted average number of shares outstanding
Basic and Diluted

6
6

17,19
17
17
13(f)
10,12
12
8
20
11
8

23
23
21

(0.02)
387,006,229

2020
11,962,525

(0.08)
286,374,573

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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1933 INDUSTRIES INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE LOSS
For the years ended July 31, 2021 and 2021
(Expressed in Canadian dollars)
Net loss for the year

$

Other comprehensive loss
Foreign currency translation adjustment (Item that will be
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss)
Comprehensive loss for the year
Comprehensive income (loss) attributable to:
Shareholders of the Company
Translation adjustment – Shareholders of the Company
Comprehensive loss attributable to shareholders
Non-controlling interest
Translation adjustment – Non-controlling interest
Comprehensive loss attributable to Non-controlling interest

$

2021
(6,287,423) $

2020
(22,203,622)

(2,170,836)
(8,458,259)

(866,739)
(23,070,361)

(6,470,416)
(2,137,900)
(8,608,316)
182,993
(32,936)
150,057
(8,458,259) $

(21,541,845)
(825,634)
(22,367,479)
(661,777)
(41,105)
(702,882)
(23,070,361)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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1933 INDUSTRIES INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the years ended July 31, 2021 and 2021
(Expressed in Canadian dollars)
Operating Activities
Loss from continuing operations
Adjustments to non-cash items:
Fair value adjustment on sale of inventory
Fair value adjustment on growth of biological assets
Share-based compensation
Accretion expense
Depreciation
Change in fair value of warrant liability
Interest expense on convertible debentures
Warrants issued for professional fees
Shares issued for wages and benefits
Impairment of property and equipment
Gain on debt modification

2021

Note
$

Financing Activities
Common shares issued for cash - private placement
Common shares issued for cash - exercise of stock options
Common shares issued for cash - exercise of warrant and agent
options
Share issue costs
Subscription receipt
Interest paid on convertible debentures
Repayment of lease obligation
Net cash provided by financing activities
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash
Change in cash
Cash, beginning of year
Cash, end of year

(6,287,423) $

(20,017,430)

1,985,587
(3,154,163)
1,025,074
107,194
993,307
(5,733)
634,492
35,136
427,459
-

310,281
1,782,803
1,067,107
2,185,640
509,395
46,847
170,752
(185,327)

(2,106,762)
1,112,955
(32,252)
57,315
53,114
488,899
(4,665,801)
-

(952,213)
(283,865)
744,986
1,228,497
7,475
(125,000)
(13,510,052)
(1,468,569)

8

(456,360)
(456,360)
-

(1,095,346)
(1,095,346)
(140,378)

13
13

6,662,025
-

6
6
13(f)
12
8
11
12
13(e)
13
8
12

Changes in non-cash working capital items
Inventory
Biological assets
Receivables
Prepaid expenses
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Income taxes payable
Net cash used in operating activities of continuing operations
Net cash used in operating activities of discontinued operations
Investing Activity
Purchase of property and equipment
Net cash used in investing activities of continuing operations
Net cash used in investing activities of discontinued operations

2020

13
13
12
10

$

12,000

(492,645)
(109,839)
6,059,541

1,181,806
10,000
(152,127)
1,051,679

706,927
1,644,307
2,761,542
4,405,849

310,308
(14,852,358)
17,613,900
2,761,542

$

Supplemental disclosure with respect to cash flows (note 18)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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1933 INDUSTRIES INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
(Expressed in Canadian dollars, except share numbers)

Note

Balance, July 31, 2019
Adjustment on application of
IFRS 16
Balance, August 1, 2019
Shares issued – exercise of
options
Shares issued – exercise of
warrants
Shares issued – conversion of
convertible debentures $0.45
Shares issued - conversion of
convertible debentures $0.10
Shares issued – bonus
Subscription receipt
Share-based compensation
Warrants issued – services
Modification of convertible
debentures
Translation adjustment
Non-controlling interest
Net loss for the year
Balance, July 31, 2020

Issued
capital

Number

281,509,693
281,509,693

$

$

67,467,929
67,467,929

13

80,000

21,616

13

3,376,588

1,181,806

12,13

44,444

18,766

12,13
13,17
13
13,17
13

20,169,007
467,814
-

2,016,901
170,752
10,000
-

12,13

305,647,546

70,887,770

$

Accumulated
other
comprehensive
income (loss)

Reserves
$

$

6,329,323

$

6,329,323 $
(9,616)

Deficit
$

(8,444) $

(36,310,938)

$

(143,379)
(36,454,317) $

(289,466)

Total
$

(289,466) $

37,188,404
(143,379)
37,045,025

-

-

-

12,000

-

-

-

1,181,806

(2,904)

-

-

-

15,862

(40,525)
1,782,803
136,636

-

-

-

1,976,376
170,752
10,000
1,782,803
136,636

-

$

(8,444)

Noncontrolling
interest

(1,542,195)
6,653,522 $

825,634
817,190

$

(21,541,845)
(57,996,162) $

41,105
(661,777)
(910,138) $

(1,542,195)
866,739
(661,777)
(21,541,845)
19,452,182

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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1933 INDUSTRIES INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
(Expressed in Canadian dollars, except share numbers)

Note
Balance, July 31, 2020
Shares issued - conversion of
convertible debentures $0.10
Shares issued - Private
Placement
Share-based compensation
Share issue costs
AMA Pro 9% equity acquisition
Non-controlling interest
Translation adjustment
Net loss for the period
Balance, July 31, 2021

Issued
capital

Number
305,647,546

$

70,887,770

Accumulated
other
comprehensive
income (loss)

Reserves
$

6,653,522 $

817,190

12,13

75,203,138

7,574,521

(144,483)

-

13
13,17
13
14

69,475,969
-

4,029,351
(674,483)
-

2,246,795
1,025,074
181,838
182,703
-

(2,137,900)
-

450,326,653

$

81,817,159

$

10,145,449

$

(1,320,710)

Noncontrolling
interest

Deficit
$

(57,996,162) $
-

$

(182,703)
(6,470,416)
(64,649,281)

Total

(910,138) $
-

$

182,993
(32,936)
(760,081)

19,452,182
7,430,038

$

6,276,146
1,025,074
(492,645)
182,993
(2,170,836)
(6,470,416)
25,232,536

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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1933 INDUSTRIES INC.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
July 31, 2021 and 2020
(Expressed in Canadian dollars, except where noted)
1. NATURE OF OPERATIONS
1933 Industries Inc. (the “Company”) was incorporated pursuant to the provisions of the Business Corporations Act of Alberta
and later continued into the Province of British Columbia. The Company is a publicly traded corporation with its registered
office located at 300 – 1055 West Hastings Street, Vancouver, British Columbia, Canada. The Company’s common shares are
listed under the symbol “TGIF” on the Canadian Securities Exchange and under the symbol “TGIFF” on the OTCQX.
The Company operates in the medical and recreational cannabis sectors in Nevada, USA. Alternative Medicine Association
(“AMA”), a 91% owned subsidiary of the Company is licensed in the State of Nevada as (i) a cultivation facility; and (ii) a
production facility for edible, or cannabis-infused products. On November 4, 2021, the Company acquired the remaining 9%
interest in AMA Production LLC (“AMA Pro”) from the holders to make the Company’s share in AMA Pro 100% (note 14).
Infused Mfg (“Infused”), a 100% owned subsidiary of the Company, is focused on developing, and manufacturing hemp and
cannabidiol (“CBD”) infused products and brands for retail sale and use in jurisdictions where permitted. On April 1, 2020, the
Company acquired the remaining 9% interest in Infused from the holder to make the Company’s share in Infused 100%.
While some states in the United States (“U.S.”) have authorized the use and sale of cannabis, it remains illegal under federal
law and the approach to enforcement of U.S. federal laws against cannabis is subject to change. Because the Company
engages in cannabis related activities in the U.S., it assumes certain risks due to conflicting state and federal laws. The federal
law relating to cannabis could be enforced at any time and this would put the Company at risk of being prosecuted and having
its assets seized. The Company may be irreparably harmed by a change in enforcement policies of the federal government
depending on the nature of such change.
Given the current illegality of cannabis under U.S. federal law, the Company’s ability to access both public and private capital
may be hindered by the fact that certain financial institutions are regulated by the U.S. federal government and are thus
prohibited from providing financing to companies engaged in cannabis related activities. The Company’s ability to access
public capital markets in the U.S. is directly hindered as a result. The Company may, however, be able to access public and
private capital markets in Canada in order to support continuing operations.
COVID-19
On March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization declared the coronavirus disease ("COVID-19") a global pandemic. During
the remainder of March 2020 and through to July 31, 2021, the COVID-19 pandemic has negatively impacted global economic
and financial markets. Most industries have been impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic and are facing operating challenges
associated with the regulations and guidelines resulting from efforts to contain it.
As a direct result of the COVID-19 pandemic, the Company realized significant decreases in revenues resulting from the
decline in tourism to Las Vegas. The global response to the COVID-19 pandemic has resulted in, among other things, border
closures, severe travel restrictions, as well as quarantine, self-isolation, and other emergency measures imposed by various
governments. Additional government or regulatory actions or inactions around the world including in jurisdictions where the
Company operates may also have potentially significant economic and social impacts. If the Company’s business operations
are disrupted or suspended as a result of these or other measures, it may have a material adverse effect on the Company’s
business, results of operations and financial performance. Factors that may be impacted, among other things, are the
Company’s operating plan, supply chain and workforce. The Company continues to monitor the situation closely, including any
potential impact on its operations. The extent to which COVID-19 may impact the Company’s business and operations will
depend on future developments that are highly uncertain and cannot be accurately estimated, at this time, including new
information which may emerge concerning the severity of and the actions required to contain COVID-19 or remedy its impact.
Going Concern
The Company has not yet achieved profitable operations and during the year ended July 31, 2021, the Company incurred a
net loss of $6,287,423 (year ended July 31, 2020 - $22,203,622) and used cash in operating activities of $4,665,801 (year
ended July 31, 2020 - $13,510,052). In addition, the Company has accumulated deficit of $64,649,281 (July 31, 2020 $57,996,162). The ability of the Company to ensure continuing operations is dependent on the Company’s ability to raise
sufficient funds to finance development activities and expand sales to achieve profitable operations. These circumstances may
cast significant doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
These consolidated financial statements have been prepared using accounting principles applicable to a going concern and do
not reflect adjustments, which could be material, to the carrying values of the assets and liabilities. See note 24 for events
after the reporting period.
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1933 INDUSTRIES INC.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
July 31, 2021 and 2020
(Expressed in Canadian dollars, except where noted)
2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION
a) Statement of compliance
These consolidated financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and authorized for issue on November 29,
2021.
These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRS”) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board and interpretations issued by the International Financial
Reporting Interpretations Committee.
b) Basis of measurement
These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in Canadian dollars on a historical cost basis except for cash
and biological assets measured at fair value. Historical cost is generally based upon the fair value of the consideration given in
exchange for assets.
c) Functional and presentation currency
These consolidated financial statements are presented in Canadian dollars. The functional currency of the Company is the
Canadian dollar. See “Basis of consolidation” for the functional currency of the Company’s subsidiaries.
d) Basis of consolidation
All inter-company balances, transactions, revenues and expenses have been eliminated on consolidation. These consolidated
financial statements incorporate the accounts of the Company and the following subsidiaries:

Name of subsidiary
1080034 B.C. Ltd.
1933 Management Services
Inc.
1933 Legacy Inc.
Infused Mfg LLC (1)
FN Pharmaceuticals LLC
Alternative Medicine
Association LLC
AMA Productions LLC (2)
Spire Secure Logistics Inc.
(1)
(2)

Abbreviation
0034 BC

Country of
Incorporation
Canada

Percentage
Ownership
100%

Functional
Currency
CAD

FNM
Legacy

USA
USA

100%
100%

USD
USD

Infused MFG
FNP

USA
USA

100%(1)
100%

USD
USD

AMA
AMA Pro
Spire

USA
USA
Canada

91%
100%(2)
100%

USD
USD
CAD

Principal Activity
Holding company
Holding company
Holding Company
Hemp and CBD –
Infused products
Holding company
Cannabis cultivation
and production
Holding Company
Inactive

On April 1, 2019, the Company acquired the remaining 9% interest from the holder to make the Company’s share in
Infused Mfg 100% (note 14).
On November 4, 2020, the Company acquired the remaining 9% interest in AMA Pro from the holders to make the
Company’s share in AMA Pro 100% (note 14).

e) Reclassification of prior year amounts
The Company has reclassified inventory and biological assets on the consolidated statements of cash flows to improve
clarity.
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1933 INDUSTRIES INC.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
July 31, 2021 and 2020
(Expressed in Canadian dollars, except where noted)
3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a) Critical judgements and estimates
The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the Company’s management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about future events that affect the amounts reported in the consolidated financial
statements and related notes to the financial statements. Although these estimates are based on management’s best
knowledge of the amount, event or actions, actual results may differ from those estimates. Estimates and judgements are
continuously evaluated and are based on management's experience and other factors, including expectations of future events
that are believed to be reasonable.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods
affected. The information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and judgment considered by management in
preparing these consolidated financial statements is as follows:
i.

Determination of functional currency
In accordance with International Accounting Standard (“IAS”) 21, The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates, the
Company determined its functional currency, and its Canadian subsidiaries, to be the Canadian dollar, and the functional
currency of its US subsidiaries to be the United States dollar. Such determination involves certain judgements to identify
the primary economic environment. The Company reconsiders the functional currency of its subsidiaries if there is a
change in events and/or conditions which determine the primary economic environment.

ii.

Assessment of Cash Generating Units
For impairment assessment and testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates
cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or cash generating units
(“CGU”). The Company applies judgement in assessing the smallest group of assets that comprise a single CGU.

iii.

Impairment of long-lived assets
At the end of each reporting period, the Company assesses whether there are any indicators, from external and internal
sources of information, that an asset or CGU may be impaired, thereby requiring adjustment to the carrying value. The
Company has identified the continued operating losses of AMA and Infused as an indicator of impairment.
As a result of these impairment indicators, the Company assessed the goodwill associated with the AMA CGU and the
Infused CGU for impairment and concluded the recoverable value of the CGU was more than its carrying value and no
impairment was required. The Company applies judgement is determining the discount rate, unit sales growth rates,
selling prices, gross margin and operating costs.

iv.

Estimated useful lives and depreciation of property and equipment
Depreciation of property and equipment is dependent upon estimates of useful lives, which are determined through the
exercise of judgment. The assessment of any impairment of these assets is dependent upon estimates of recoverable
amounts that take into account factors such as economic and market conditions and the useful lives of assets.

v.

Business combinations
Judgement is used in determining whether an acquisition is a business combination or an asset acquisition.
Estimates are made as to the fair value of assets and liabilities acquired. In certain circumstances, such as the valuation
of property and equipment, intangible assets and goodwill acquired, the Company may rely on independent third-party
valuators. The determination of these fair values involves a variety of assumptions, including revenue growth rates,
expected operating income, and discount rates.
The Company measures all the assets acquired and liabilities assumed at their acquisition-date fair values. Noncontrolling interests in the acquiree are measured on the basis of the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the
equity in the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
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1933 INDUSTRIES INC.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
July 31, 2021 and 2020
(Expressed in Canadian dollars, except where noted)
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Acquisition-related costs are recognized as expenses in the periods in which the costs are incurred and the services are
received (except for the costs to issue debt or equity securities which are recognized according to specific requirements).
The excess of the aggregate of (a) the consideration transferred to obtain control, the amount of any non-controlling
interest
in the acquiree over (b) the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed, is recognized as goodwill as of the acquisition date.
vi.

Revenue recognition
Determination of performance obligations
The Company applied judgement to determine if a good or service that is promised to a customer is distinct based on
whether the customer can benefit from the good or service on its own or together with other readily available resources
and whether the good or service is separately identifiable. Based on these criteria, the Company determined the primary
performance obligation relating to its sales contracts is the delivery of product to its clients.
Transfer of control
Judgement is required to determine when transfer of control occurs relating to the sale of the Company's goods to its
clients. Management based its assessment on a number of indicators of control, which include, but are not limited to
whether the Company has present right of payment, and whether the physical possession of the goods, significant risks
and rewards and legal title have been transferred to the customer.

vii.

Biological assets and inventory
In calculating the value of the biological assets and inventory, management is required to make a number of estimates,
including estimating the stage of growth of cannabis up to the point of harvest, harvesting costs, selling costs, sales price,
wastage and expected yields for the cannabis plant. In calculating final inventory values, management is required to
determine an estimate of spoiled or expired inventory and compares the inventory cost to estimated net realizable value.

viii.

Expected credit losses
In calculating the expected credit loss (“ECL”) on financial instruments, management is required to make a number of
judgments including the probability of possible outcomes with regards to credit losses, the discount rate to use for time
value of money and whether the financial instrument’s credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition.

ix.

Current and deferred taxes
The Company’s provision for income taxes is estimated based on the expected annual effective tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. The current and deferred
components of income taxes are estimated based on forecasted movements in temporary differences. Changes to the
expected annual effective tax rate and differences between the actual and expected effective tax rate and between actual
and forecasted movements in temporary differences will result in adjustments to the Company’s provision for income
taxes in the period changes are made and/or differences are identified.
In assessing the probability of realizing income tax assets recognized, management makes estimates related to
expectations of future taxable income, applicable tax planning opportunities, expected timing of reversals of existing
temporary differences and the likelihood that tax positions taken will be sustained upon examination by applicable tax
authorities. In making its assessments, management gives additional weight to positive and negative evidence that can
be objectively verified. Estimates of future taxable income are based on forecasted cash flows from operations and the
application of existing tax laws in each jurisdiction. Forecasted cash flows from operations based on production and
customer demand are internally developed and reviewed by management. Weight is attached to tax planning
opportunities that are within the Company’s control, and are feasible and implementable without significant obstacles.
The likelihood that tax positions taken will be sustained upon examination by applicable tax authorities is assessed based
on individual facts and circumstances of the relevant tax position evaluated in light of all available evidence.
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Where applicable tax laws and regulations are either unclear or subject to ongoing varying interpretations, it is
reasonably possible that changes in these estimates can occur that materially affect the amounts of income tax assets
recognized. At the end of each reporting period, the Company reassesses unrecognized income tax assets.
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
x.

Equity-settled share-based payments
The Company utilizes the Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model (“Black-Scholes”) to estimate the fair value of stock
options granted to directors, officers, employees, and consultants, warrants issued for services and warrants issued in
private placements. The use of Black-Scholes requires management to make various estimates and assumptions that
impact the value assigned to the stock options including the forecasted future volatility of the stock price, the risk-free
interest rate, dividend yield and the expected life of the stock options. Changes in these input assumptions can
significantly affect the fair value estimate.

xi.

Warrant liability
Warrant liability is measured at fair value using the Black-Scholes option pricing model based on estimated fair values at
the date of grant and revalued at period end with changes in fair value being charged or credited to the consolidated
statement of loss and comprehensive loss. The Black-Scholes option pricing model utilizes subjective assumptions such
as expected price volatility and expected life of the option. Changes in these input assumptions can significantly affect
the fair value estimate.

xii.

Contingencies
Due to the nature of the Company’s operations, various legal and tax matters can arise from time to time. In the event
that management’s estimate of the future resolution of these matters changes, the Company will recognize the effects of
the changes in its consolidated financial statements for the period in which such changes occur.
In the ordinary course of business, from time to time the Company is involved in various claims related to operations,
rights, commercial, employment or other claims. Although such matters cannot be predicted with certainty, management
does not consider the Company’s exposure to these claims to be material to these financial statements.

xiii.

Convertible instruments
Convertible notes are compound financial instruments which are accounted for separately by their components: a
financial liability and an equity instrument. The financial liability, which represents the obligation to pay the principal and
coupon interest on the convertible notes in the future, is initially measured at its fair value and subsequently measured at
amortized cost. The residual amount is accounted for as an equity instrument at issuance. The identification of
convertible note components is based on interpretations of the substance of the contractual arrangement and therefore
requires judgement from management. The separation of the components affects the initial recognition of the convertible
debenture at issuance and the subsequent recognition of interest on the liability component. The determination of the fair
value of the liability is also based on a number of assumptions, including contractual future cash flows, discount rates and
the presence of any derivative financial instruments.

xiv.

Leases
Identifying whether a contract includes a lease
IFRS 16 applies a control model to the identification of leases, distinguishing between a lease and a service contract on
the basis of whether the customer controls the asset. The Company had to apply judgment on certain factors, including
whether the supplier has substantive substitution rights, does the Company obtain substantially all of the economic
benefits and who has the right to direct the use of that asset.
Estimate of lease term
When the Company recognizes a lease, it assesses the lease term based on the conditions of the lease and determines
whether it will extend the lease at the end of the lease contract or exercise an early termination option. As it is not
reasonably certain that the extension or early termination options will be exercised, the Company determined that the
term of its leases are the lesser of original lease term or the life of the mine. This significant estimate could affect future
results if the Company extends the lease or exercises an early termination option.
Incremental borrowing rate
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When the Company recognizes a lease, the future lease payments are discounted using the Company’s incremental
borrowing rate. This significant estimate impacts the carrying amount of the lease liabilities and the interest expense
recorded on the consolidated statement of loss and comprehensive loss.
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
b) Foreign currencies
Functional and presentation currency
The functional currency is the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates. The functional
currency of the Company and its subsidiaries was determined by conducting an analysis of the consideration factors identified
in IAS 21, The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates (“IAS 21”). The functional currency of the Company and its
subsidiaries is included within Note 2.
Translation of foreign transactions and balances into the functional currency
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency of the Company at rates of exchange prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At each financial position reporting date, all monetary assets and liabilities that are denominated in
foreign currencies are translated to the functional currency of the Company at the rates prevailing at the date of the statement
of financial position. Non-monetary assets and liabilities are translated at historic rates. Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the settlement of such transactions are recognized in profit or loss.
Translation of the functional currency into the presentation currency
The results of foreign operations which have a different functional currency than the Company are translated to Canadian
dollars at appropriate average rates of exchange during the period. The assets and liabilities of foreign operations are
translated to Canadian dollars at rates of exchange in effect at the end of the period. Gains or losses arising on translation of
the foreign operation to Canadian dollars at period end are recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) as a
translation adjustment.
c) Cash
Cash consists of cash at banks and on hand.
d) Inventory
Inventories of harvested finished goods and packing materials are valued initially at cost and subsequently at the lower of cost
and net realizable value. Inventories of harvested cannabis are transferred from biological assets at their fair value at harvest,
which becomes the initial deemed cost. Any subsequent post-harvest costs are capitalized to inventory to the extent that cost
is less than net realizable value. All direct and indirect costs related to inventory are capitalized as they are incurred and they
are subsequently recorded within ‘cost of goods sold’ on the statements of loss and comprehensive loss at the time cannabis
is sold, except for realized fair value amounts included in inventory sold which are recorded as a separate line on the
statements of loss and comprehensive loss.
Net realizable value is determined as the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. Cost is determined using the weighted average cost basis.
Products for resale and supplies and consumables are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value. The Company
reviews inventory for obsolete and slow-moving goods and any such inventory is written down to net realizable value.
e) Biological assets
While the Company’s biological assets are within the scope of IAS 41, Agriculture, the direct and indirect costs of biological
assets are determined using an approach similar to the capitalization criteria outlined in IAS 2, Inventories. They include the
direct cost of growing materials as well as other indirect costs such as utilities and supplies used in the growing process.
Indirect labour for individuals involved in the growing and quality control process is also included, as well as facilities overhead
costs, excluding depreciation, to the extent it is associated with the growing space. All direct and indirect costs of biological
assets are capitalized as they are incurred and they are all subsequently recorded within the line item “cost of sales” on the
statement of loss and comprehensive loss in the period that the related product is sold. Unrealized fair value gain/losses on
growth of biological assets are recorded in a separate line on the face of the statements of loss and comprehensive loss.
Biological assets are measured at fair value less costs to sell on the statement of financial position.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
f) Property and equipment
Property and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Depreciation is calculated using the following terms and methods:
Office equipment
Production equipment
Leasehold improvements
Right of use

Straight-line
Straight-line
Straight-line
Straight-line

5-7 years
7-20 years
Shorter of asset life and lease term
5-20 years

An item of property and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its
use. Any gain or loss arising from derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying value of the asset) is included in the profit or loss in the period the asset is derecognized. The assets’ residual
values, useful lives and methods of depreciation are reviewed at each reporting date, and adjusted prospectively, if
appropriate.
g) Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of the net identifiable assets of an acquired business.
The Company measures goodwill as the fair value of the consideration transferred including the recognized amount of any
non-controlling interest acquired, less the fair value of the identifiable assets acquired, and liabilities assumed, all measured as
at the acquisition date. When the excess is negative, a bargain purchase gain is recognized immediately in profit or loss.
Transaction costs, other than those associated with the issue of debt or equity securities, that the Company incurs in
connection with a business combination are expensed as incurred.
h) Provisions
A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation that can be
estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation.
Constructive obligations are obligations that derive from the Company’s actions where:
• by an established pattern of past practice, published policies or a sufficiently specific current statement, the
Company has indicated to other parties that it will accept certain responsibilities; and
• as a result, the Company has created a valid expectation on the part of those other parties that it will discharge
those responsibilities.
Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted to reflect management’s current best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. If it is no longer probable that an outflow
of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed.
Provisions are reduced by actual expenditures for which the provision was originally recognized. Provisions are determined by
discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects the current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the liability. The accretion of the discount is charged to the consolidated statement of loss and
comprehensive loss.
i) Convertible debentures
The convertible debentures were determined to be compound instruments, comprising a financial liability (debt obligation) and
an equity component (conversion option). The debt obligation is recognized at fair value by discounting the principal balance
by the borrowing rate for a similar instrument without the conversion feature.
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Using the residual method, the carrying amount of the conversion option represents the difference between the principal
amount and the discounted debt obligation. The convertible debentures, net of the conversion option, is accreted to the
principal balance using the effective interest rate method over the term of the convertible debentures, such that the carrying
amount of the debt obligation will equal the principal balance at maturity.
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Upon exercise of the convertible debentures, the conversion option and the carrying value of debt obligation is reclassified to
share capital. Transaction costs are allocated on a pro-rata basis between the debt obligation and the conversion option.
j) Leases
A contract is a lease or contains a lease if it conveys the right to control the use of an asset for a time period in exchange for
consideration.
To identify a lease, the Company (1) considers whether an explicit or implicit asset is specified in the contract and (2)
determines whether the Company obtains substantially all the economic benefits from the use of the underlying asset by
assessing numerous factors, including but not limited to substitution rights and the right to determine how and for what purpose
the asset is used.
When assessing the lease term, management considers all facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive to
exercise an extension option or to not exercise a termination option. This judgment is based on factors such as contract rates
compared to market rates, economic reasons, significance of leasehold improvements, termination and relocation costs,
installation of specialized assets, residual value guarantees, and any sublease term.
The Company has elected not to recognize right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for low-value assets or short-term leases
with a term of 12 months or less. These lease payments are recognized in operating expenses over the lease term.
The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid. The Company elected to
not separate non-lease components from lease components and to account for the non-lease and lease components as a
single lease component. Lease payments generally include fixed payments less any lease incentives receivable. The lease
liability is discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, the Company’s
incremental borrowing rate. The Company estimates the incremental borrowing rate based on the lease term, collateral
assumptions, and the economic environment in which the lease is denominated. The lease liability is subsequently measured
at amortized cost using the effective interest method. The lease liability is remeasured when the expected lease payments
change as a result of new assessments of contractual options and residual value guarantees.
The right-of-use asset is recognized at the present value of the liability at the commencement date of the lease less any
incentives received from the lessor. Added to the right-of-use asset are initial direct costs, payments made before the
commencement date, and estimated restoration costs. The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated on a straight-line
basis from the commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease
term. The right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of
the lease liability.
k) Share-based payments
The fair value of stock options granted is recognized as a share-based payment expense with a corresponding increase in
reserves. The fair value is measured at grant date and each tranche is recognized on a graded-vesting basis over the period
during which the options vest. The fair value of the stock options granted is measured using the Black-Scholes option pricing
model considering the terms and conditions upon which the options were granted. The Company annually revises its estimates
of the number of stock options that are expected to vest based on the non-market vesting conditions. It recognises the impact
of the revision to original estimates, if any, in profit or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to reserves.
l) Share purchase warrants
Certain share purchase warrants are classified as a derivative liability under the principles of IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments.
As the exercise price of the share purchase warrant is fixed in US dollars and the functional currency of the Company is the
Canadian dollar, the share purchase warrants are considered a derivative liability in accordance with IAS 32 - Financial
Instruments: Presentation as a variable amount of cash in the Company’s functional currency will be received upon exercise.
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These types of share purchase warrants are recognized at fair value using the Black-Scholes option pricing model. Share
purchase warrants are initially recorded as a liability at fair value with any subsequent changes in fair value recognized in the
consolidated statement of loss and comprehensive loss.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Upon exercise of the share purchase warrants with exercise prices in a currency other than the Company’s functional
currency, the share purchase warrants are revalued at the date of exercise with any gain or loss being charged to the
consolidated statement of loss and comprehensive loss, and the total fair value of the exercised share purchase warrants is
reallocated to equity. The proceeds generated from the payment of the exercise price are also allocated to equity.
m) Share capital
Common shares are classified as shareholders’ equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of common shares
and other equity instruments are recognized as a deduction from shareholders’ equity. Common shares issued for
consideration other than cash, are valued based on their market value at the date the shares are issued.
The Company has adopted a residual value method with respect to the measurement of warrants attached to private
placement units. The residual value method first allocates value to the more easily measurable component based on fair value
and then the residual value, if any, to the less easily measurable component. The Company considers the fair value of
warrants issued in the private placements to be the more easily measurable component and the warrants are valued at their
fair value, as determined by the the Black-Scholes option pricing model. The balance, if any, is allocated to share capital. Any
fair value attributed to the warrants is recorded as reserves.
In situations where equity instruments are issued to non-employees and some or all of the goods or services received by the
entity as consideration cannot be specifically identified, they are measured at fair value of the share-based payment.
Otherwise, share-based payments are measured at the fair value of goods and services received.
n) Financial instruments
Classification of financial assets
Amortized cost:
Financial assets that meet the following conditions are measured subsequently at amortized cost:
•

The financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows, and

•

The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

The amortized cost of a financial asset is the amount at which the financial asset is measured at initial recognition minus the
principal repayments, plus the cumulative amortization using effective interest method of any difference between that initial
amount and the maturity amount, adjusted for any loss allowance. Interest income is recognized using the effective interest
method.
The Company has classified cash and receivables as amortized cost.
FVTOCI:
Financial assets that meet the following conditions are measured at FVTOCI:
•
The financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling financial assets, and
•
The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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The Company does not currently hold any financial instruments designated as FVTOCI.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Equity instruments designated as FVTOCI:
On initial recognition, the Company may make an irrevocable election (on an instrument-by-instrument basis) to designate
investments in equity instruments that would otherwise be measured at fair value through profit or loss to present subsequent
changes in fair value in other comprehensive income. Designation at FVTOCI is not permitted if the equity investment is held
for trading or if it is contingent consideration recognized by an acquirer in a business combination. Investments in equity
instruments at FVTOCI are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs. Subsequently, they are measured at fair
value with gains and losses arising from changes in fair value recognized in other OCI. The cumulative gain or loss is not
reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the equity instrument, instead, it is transferred to retained earnings.
The Company does not currently hold any equity instruments designated as FVTOCI.
Financial assets measured subsequently at fair value through profit or loss:
By default, all other financial assets are measured subsequently at FVTPL.
The Company, at initial recognition, may also irrevocably designate a financial asset as measured at FVTPL if doing so
eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise from measuring
assets or liabilities or recognizing the gains and losses on them on different bases.
Financial assets measured at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with any fair value gains
or losses recognized in profit or loss to the extent they are not part of a designated hedging relationship. The Company does
not currently hold any equity instruments designated as FVTPL.
Financial liabilities and equity
Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Company after deducting all its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognized at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is recognized and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss is
recognized in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.
Classification of financial liabilities
Financial liabilities that are not contingent consideration of an acquirer in a business combination, held for trading or
designated as at FVTPL, are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.
The Company has classified accounts payable and accrued liabilities, and convertible debentures as amortized cost.
Financial instruments designated as hedging instruments
The Company does not currently apply nor have a past practice of applying hedge accounting to financial instruments.
o) Impairment of financial assets
The ECL applies to financial assets measured at amortized cost, contract assets and debt investments measured at FVOCI.
To assess credit losses, the Company considers a broad range of information when assessing credit risk and measuring
expected credit losses, including past events, current conditions and forecasts that affect the expected collectability of future
cash flows of the instrument.
In applying this forward-looking approach, the Company separates instruments into the below categories:
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1. financial instruments that have not deteriorated significantly since initial recognition or that have low credit risk;
2. financial instruments that have deteriorated significantly since initial recognition and whose credit loss is not low; or
3. financial instruments that have objective evidence of impairment at the reporting date.
12-month expected credit losses are recognized for the first category while ‘lifetime expected credit losses’ are recognized for
the second category.
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
For financial assets carried at amortized cost, the amount of the impairment is the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows, discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest
rate.
Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL and amortized cost, are assessed for indicators of impairment at each reporting
period. Financial assets are impaired when there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the investment have been impacted.
p) Impairment of non-financial assets
At the end of each reporting period the carrying amounts of the Company’s non-financial assets (property and equipment and
goodwill) are reviewed to determine whether there is any indication that those assets may be impaired. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment, if any. The
recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. Fair value is determined as the amount that
would be obtained from the sale of the asset in an arm’s length transaction between knowledgeable and willing parties. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. If the recoverable amount of an
asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount
and the impairment loss is recognized in profit or loss for the period. For an asset that does not generate largely independent
cash inflows, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs.
Following the recognition of an impairment loss, the depreciation charge applicable to the asset is adjusted prospectively in
order to systematically allocate the revised carrying amount, net of any residual value, over the remaining useful life. Where an
impairment subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or CGU) is increased to the revised estimate and its
recoverable amount, but to an amount that does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognized for the asset (or CGU) in prior periods. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognized
immediately in profit or loss. Goodwill impairment losses are not reversed.
q) Revenue
Revenue is recognized in accordance with IFRS 15, Revenue, when a customer obtains control of promised goods or services.
The amount of revenue reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled to receive in exchange for these
goods or services. The Company applies the following five-step analysis to determine whether, how much and when revenue
is recognized: (1) Identify the contract with the customer; (2) Identify the performance obligation in the contract; (3) Determine
the transaction price; (4) Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligation in the contract; and (5) Recognize
revenue when or as the Company satisfies a performance obligation. Revenue is shown net of returns and discounts.
Revenue from the sale of inventory is recognized when the Company has transferred the significant risks and rewards of
ownership to the customer, the Company retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated
with ownership nor effective control over the goods sold, the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that
the economic benefits of the transaction will flow to the Company, and the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably. Significant risks and rewards are generally considered to be transferred when the
Company has shipped the product to customers. Revenue is recognized at the fair value of consideration received or
receivable.
r) Discontinued operations
A discontinued operation is a component of the Company that either has been abandoned, disposed of, or is classified as held
for sale, and: (i) represents a separate major line of business or geographical area of operation; (ii) is part of a single
coordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of business or geographical area of operation; or (iii) is a subsidiary
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acquired exclusively with a view to resell. A component of the Company comprises an operation and cash flows that can be
clearly distinguished, operationally and for financial reporting purposes, from the rest of the Company.
s) Loss per share
Basic loss per common share is calculated by dividing the loss attributed to shareholders for the year by the weighted average
number of common shares outstanding in the period. Diluted loss per common share is calculated by adjusting the weighted
average number of common shares outstanding to assume conversion of all dilutive potential common shares. Diluted loss per
share is equal to basic loss per share for the periods presented as the effect would be anti-dilutive.
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Anti-dilutive securities include the convertible debentures (note 12), warrants (note 13(e)), stock options (note 13(f)) and agent
options (note 13(g)).
t) Income taxes
Income tax expense comprises deferred income tax expense and is recognized in profit and loss except to the extent that it
relates to items recognized directly in equity, in which case it is recognized in equity.
Deferred tax is recognized by providing for temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is not recognized on the initial
recognition
of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are
expected to be applied to temporary differences when they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the reporting date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to
offset, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax entities,
but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realized
simultaneously.
A deferred tax asset is recognized to the extent that is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the
temporary difference can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.
4. RECEIVABLES
July 31,
2021
Trade receivables
GST receivable
Other

$

$

796,390
95,837
41,882
934,109

$

July 31,
2020
679,535

$

198,845
109,629
988,009

Goods and Services Tax (“GST”) receivable include input tax credits receivable from the Government of Canada.
5. INVENTORY

Harvested cannabis and trim
Cannabis oil and equivalent
Finished goods
Raw materials

$

$

July 31,
2021
2,466,382
87,712
1,107,313
538,443
4,199,850

$

$

July 31,
2020
612,432
1,005,160
316,088
340,627
2,274,307

Inventories expensed to cost of sales during the year ended July 31, 2021, was $8,323,630 (2020 - $9,365,413).
6. BIOLOGICAL ASSETS
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Balance, beginning of year
Production costs capitalized
Change in fair value less costs to sell due to biological transformation
Transferred to inventory upon harvest
Foreign exchange loss
Balance, end of year

$

$

July 31,
2021
810,332 $
4,946,872
3,154,163
(7,894,046)
(151,368)
865,953 $

July 31,
2020
168,400
4,583,766
(310,281)
(3,622,410)
(9,143)
810,332

The fair value was determined using an expected cash flow model which assumes the biological assets will grow to maturity,
be harvested and converted into finished goods inventory, and be sold in the retail cannabis market.
6. BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (continued)
Biological assets are measured at fair value less costs to sell until harvest. All production costs are capitalized. As at July 31,
2021, the carrying value of biological assets consisted entirely of live cannabis plants. On average, the grow cycle is
approximately 17 weeks.
The fair value measurements for biological assets have been categorized as Level 3 (as defined in note 15). These estimates
are subject to volatility in market prices and several uncontrollable factors, which will be reflected in gain or loss on biological
assets in future periods.
The following significant unobservable inputs, all of which are classified as level 3 on the fair value hierarchy, were used by
management as part of the model:
•
•
•
•
•

Estimated Sales price per gram - calculated as the weighted average selling price for all expected grades and
strains of cannabis based on estimates published by the State of Nevada of the fair value of various cannabis
forms on a per pound basis.
Weighted average stage of growth - represents the weighted average number of weeks out of the expected 17
week growing cycle that cannabis plants have reached as of the measurement date.
Expected yields by plant strain - represents the number of grams of finished cannabis that are expected to be
obtained from each harvested cannabis plant.
Wastage - represents the weighted average percentage of cannabis plants expected to fail to mature to the point
of harvest based upon historical actual results.
Post-harvest processing cost - calculated as the cost per gram of harvested cannabis to convert into finished dry
bulk flower ready to be packaged into finished goods

The following table quantifies each significant unobservable input used in the model to calculate fair value less costs to sell of
cannabis plants:
Assumption
Estimated sales price per gram
Weighted average stage of growth
Expected yields by plant strain
Wastage
Post–harvest processing cost per gram

USD$

USD$

July 31,
2021
3.65
9 weeks
116 grams
1.56%
0.31

USD$

USD$

July 31,
2020
3.57
9 weeks
95 grams
5.00%
0.57

Increases in cost required up to the point of harvest, harvesting costs and selling costs will decrease the fair value of biological
assets, while increases in sales price and expected yield for the cannabis plant will increase the fair value of biological assets.
The following table provides the impact that a 10% increase/decrease in each input would have on net loss and
comprehensive loss.
Assumption
Estimated sales price per gram
Weighted average stage of growth
Expected yields by plant strain

July 31,
2021
112,162
102,569
102,569

July 31,
2020
88,372
74,268
74,268
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(4,417)
(9,594)

Wastage
Post – harvest cost per gram

(7,473)
(14,104)

7. PREPAID EXPENSES AND DEPOSITS

Prepaid expenses
Security deposit

$
$

July 31,
2021
660,839
82,616
743,455

$
$

July 31,
2020
596,328
358,402
954,730
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8. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Construction
in Progress

Land
Cost
Balance, July 31, 2019
Adoption of IFRS 16
Additions
Disposals
Effects of movement in
foreign exchange
Balance, July 31, 2020
Additions
Impairment
Effects of movement in
foreign exchange
Balance, July 31, 2021
Accumulated depreciation
Balance, July 31, 2019
Adoption of IFRS 16
Depreciation
Disposals
Effects of movement in
foreign exchange
Balance, July 31, 2020
Depreciation
Effects of movement in
foreign exchange

$

1,128,961
-

$

21,982
1,150,943
(80,885)
$

$

Balance, July 31, 2021

$

Carrying amount
Balance, July 31, 2021
Balance, July 31, 2021

$
$

1,070,058
-

2,701,409
465,074
-

Leasehold
Improvements
$

43,763
3,210,246
$

$

(225,608)
2,984,638
-

809,108
79,208
-

Production
Equipment
$

56,283
944,599
$

$

(66,384)
878,215
127,879
94,430
-

-

-

1,123
223,432
88,257

-

-

15,971

-

$

-

$

327,660

1,150,943
1,070,058

$
$

3,210,246
2,984,638

$
$

721,167
550,555

$

$

$

$
$

Office
Equipment

4,331,694 $
800,494
(140,378)

255,675
20,877
-

237
4,992,047
306,299
(427,459)

3,665
280,217
150,061
-

(350,829)
4,520,059

$

(16,385)
413,893

500,255 $
334,378
(10,449)

141,912
41,123
-

13,893
838,077
551,686

380
183,415
20,152

441,574
1,831,337
4,153,970
2,688,722

$

$
$

6,234
209,801
96,802
204,092

Total

Right of Use
$

12,973,886
1,832,615
-

$

281,759
15,088,260
$

$

(1,060,366)
14,027,894
109,894
447,561
1,715,709
-

407,689
25,666,312
456,360
(427,459)
$

$

53,382
2,326,546
333,212
$

$
$

188,624
2,848,382
12,761,714
11,179,512

22,200,733
1,832,615
1,365,653
(140,378)

(1,800,457)
23,894,756
879,940
447,561
2,185,640
(10,449)
68,778
3,571,470
993,307

$

$
$

652,403
5,217,180
22,094,842
18,677,577

Total depreciation expense for the year ended July 31, 2021 was $948,764 (2020 - $2,185,640). Of the total expense, $494,836 was allocated to inventory (2020 - $nil).
During the year ended July 31, 2021, the Company recorded an impairment expense of $427,459 related to production equipment which was not in use. Prior to
recognizing the impairment expense, the Company had taken no depreciation against the production equipment.
12

1933 INDUSTRIES INC.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
July 31, 2021 and 2020
(Expressed in Canadian dollars, except where noted)

13

1933 INDUSTRIES INC.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
July 31, 2021 and 2020
(Expressed in Canadian dollars, except where noted)
9. GOODWILL

Balance, beginning of year
Effects of movement in foreign exchange
Balance, end of year

$
$

July 31,
2021
16,700,708 $
(1,173,685)
15,527,023 $

July 31,
2020
16,381,744
318,964
16,700,708

The goodwill balance relates to the acquisition of AMA and Infused on June 15, 2017. The transaction has been accounted for
as a business combination under IFRS 3, Business Combinations. The goodwill recorded represents the fair value of
consideration in excess of the net assets acquired. As at July 31, 2021, goodwill for AMA was $4,350,147 (USD$3,490,72)
(July 31, 2020 - $4,378,974 (USD$3,490,729)) and infused was $11,176,876 (USD$8,968,766) (July 31, 2020 - $12,021,734
(USD$12,021,734)).
At July 31, 2021, the Company identified AMA and Infused as distinct CGU’s and assessed the goodwill recorded through
each acquisition for impairment. The impairment tests were performed based on value in use calculation which uses cash flow
projections covering a five-year period. The cash flow projections for AMA incorporated the following key assumptions: (1)
discount rate - 15%; (2) income tax rate - 21%; (3) terminal growth rate - 5%; (4) working capital – 20% of sales; and (5)
revenue growth – 20%. The cash flow projections for Infused incorporated the following key assumptions: (1) discount rate 15%; (2) income tax rate - 21%; (3) terminal growth rate - 5%; (4) working capital – 15% of sales; and (5) revenue growth –
40%. The Company noted that the recoverable amount was greater than the carrying value for both AMA and Infused and that
there was no impairment as at July 31, 2021.
10. LEASE LIABILITY

Balance, beginning of year
Adoption of IFRS 16
Repayment of lease obligation
Interest expense
Effects of movement in foreign exchange
Balance, end of year
Less: Non-current portion
Current portion of lease liability

$

$

July 31,
2021
14,821,569 $
(1,474,861)
1,365,022
(1,075,522)
13,636,208
13,176,655
459,553 $

July 31,
2020
13,077,791
1,539,523
(1,548,652)
1,396,525
356,382
14,821,569
14,526,481
295,088

Total expenses relating to short-term leases and low-value leases during the year ended July 31, 2021 totaled $54,337 (2020 $197,390).
The maturity of the lease liability is as follows:
2022
2023
2024
2025
Thereafter
Total lease payments
Less: Unamortized interest
Total lease liability

$

$

13,077,791
1,539,523
(1,548,652)
1,396,525
356,382
14,821,569
14,526,481
295,088
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11. WARRANT LIABILITY
Certain warrants are classified as a financial instrument under the principles of IFRS 9, as the exercise price is in US dollars
while the functional currency of the Company is the Canadian dollar. Accordingly, warrants are remeasured to fair value at
each reporting date with the change in fair value charged to change in fair value of warrant liability in the consolidated
statement of loss and comprehensive loss.

As at July 31, 2019 and 2020
Issued
Gain on change in fair value of warrant liability
As at July 31, 2021
Less: Current portion of warrant liability
Non-current portion of warrant liability

Exercise Price
($)
0.10 (USD0.08)

Warrant
Liability
$
385,879
(5,733)
380,146
380,146
-

Warrants
#
13,920,000
13,920,000
-

The following table summarizes the warrants outstanding and exercisable as at July 31, 2021:

Expiry date
May 3, 2022

Number of
warrants
13,920,000
13,920,000

Weighted average
exercise price ($)
0.10 (USD0.08)
0.10 (USD0.08)

Weighted average
remaining life (in
years)
0.76
0.76

On November 3, 2020, pursuant to a non-brokered private placement, the Company issued 13,920,000 units. Each unit
consists of one common share of the Company and one transferable share purchase warrant. Each warrant entitles the holder
to acquire one common share of the Company at an exercise price of $0.106 (US$0.08) per unit for a period of 18 months from
the closing date (note 13(c)),
12. CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURES

Balance, beginning of period
Modification of convertible debenture
Interest expense
Accretion expense
Converted to common shares
Interest paid – cash
Interest paid – shares
Balance, end of period
Less: non-current portion
Current portion of convertible debentures

$

$

July 31,
2021
10,923,172 $
634,492
107,194
(6,733,724)
(696,315)
4,234,819
4,234,819 $

July 31,
2020
9,879,125
1,356,868
1,234,346
1,067,107
(1,889,323)
(622,050)
(102,901)
10,923,172
10,923,172
-

$17,250,000 convertible debenture units
On September 14, 2018, the Company closed a short form prospectus offering of convertible debenture units raising gross
proceeds of $17,250,000. Pursuant to the offering, the Company issued an aggregate of 17,250 debenture units at a price per
debenture unit of $1,000. Each debenture unit consisted of: (i) one 10.0% unsecured convertible debenture of the Company in
the principal amount of $1,000 convertible into common shares at a conversion price of $0.45 per common share at the option
of the holder, with interest payable semi-annually in arrears on June 30 and December 31 of each year and maturing on
September 14, 2021; and (ii) 2,222 common share purchase warrants expiring September 14, 2021.
Each warrant will entitle the holder thereof to purchase one common share at an exercise price of $0.65 per share until
September 14, 2021, subject to adjustment in certain events.
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12. CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURES (continued)
The Company paid cash fees of $1,668,014 in payment of the Agent's commission, corporate finance fees and other expenses
of which $45,000 was paid prior to July 31, 2020 and recorded as a transaction cost . In addition, the Agent received options
(the "September 2018 Agent's Options") to acquire 3,066,666 units of the Company at an exercise price of $0.45 per unit.
Each unit is comprised of one common share and one common share purchase warrant exercisable at a price of $0.65 per
share subject to the same terms and conditions as the warrants. The fair value of the September 2018 Agent’s Options was
$738,547 and was recorded as a transaction cost. The fair value of the September 2018 Agent’s Options was determined
using the Black-Scholes Valuation Model using the following assumptions: risk free interest rate 1.25%, expected life of 3
years, volatility of 75%.
The Company may force the conversion of the principal amount of the then outstanding convertible debentures at the
conversion price on not less than 30 days’ notice should the daily volume weighted average trading price of the common
shares be greater than $0.70 for any 10 consecutive trading days.
On June 28, 2020, the Company amended the terms of the convertible debentures. The following were the significant
amendments:
•
•
•
•

the conversion price applicable to the debentures was amended from $0.45 per common share to $0.10 per
common share;
the price at which the Company may require a forced conversion of the debentures is amended from $0.70 per
common share to $0.15 per common share, with any such conversion to be made at the amended conversion
price of $0.10 per common share;
the Company is authorized, at its discretion, to pay interest due on the debentures in cash or through the issuance
of its common shares, at a price of $0.10 per common share; and
payment of interest is amended from being payable semi-annually in arrears on the last day of June and
December in each year to being payable at the maturity date of the debentures.

The equity component of the $17,250,000 convertible debenture was initially determined to be $2,505,099 net of transaction
costs of $406,151. At June 28, 2020, the remaining equity component of the original convertible debenture was $1,805,415.
The Company determined that the June 28, 2020 modification was a substantial modification as defined by IFRS 9, Financial
Instruments, and as a result derecognized the debt obligation and equity component (conversion option). The equity
component of the remaining principal balance of the convertible debentures of $12,432,007 was determined to be $263,220.
The Company did not incur any transaction costs associated with the amendment. As a result of the amendment, the
Company recognized a gain on debt modification of $185,327 which is the result of the amendment to the equity component of
$1,542,195 less the amendment to the debt obligation of $1,356,868.
During the year ended July 31, 2021, convertible debentures with a principal balance of $6,733,724 and interest payable of
$696,315 were converted into 75,203,138 common shares of the Company (note 13(c)). The principal and interest balance
outstanding as at July 31, 2021 was $3,694,007 and $525,035, respectively. The balance per the statement of financial
position at July 31, 2021 of $4,234,819 represents the amortized cost. The balance will be increased each period through
accretion expense to increase the balance to the principal and interest balance outstanding over the remaining term of the
convertible debentures.
13. SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
a) Authorized
Unlimited common shares with no par value and unlimited preferred shares issuable in series. As of July 31, 2021, there were
450,326,653 common shares outstanding (July 31, 2020 – 305,647,546).
b) Escrow shares
The Company does not have any shares subject to escrow restrictions.
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13. SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)
c) Issued common shares
The Company had the following common share transactions during the year ended July 31, 2021:
•

•

•

•

On September 4, 2020, pursuant to the closure of its private placement, the Company issued 10,510,040 units at a price
of $0.075 per unit for gross proceeds of $788,253. Each unit consists of one common share of the Company and one-half
share purchase warrant. Each whole warrant entitles the holder to acquire one common share of the Company at an
exercise price of $0.125 per unit until September 4, 2022. Share issue costs included cash payment for finders’ fees of
$6,037 and the issuance of 40,250 share purchase warrants valued at $836 using the Black-Scholes option pricing model
with the following assumptions: a two-year expected average life, share price of $0.06; 100% volatility; risk-free interest rate
of 0.25%; and an expected dividend yield of 0%. Consideration of $109,106 was recorded to warrant reserve and the
residual amount of $679,147 was recorded to share capital.
On November 3, 2020, pursuant to a non-brokered private placement, the Company issued 13,920,000 units at a price
of $0.066 (US$0.05) per unit for gross proceeds of $918,720 (US$696,000). All proceeds were raised and paid in US
dollars. Each unit consists of one common share of the Company and one transferable share purchase warrant. Each
warrant entitles the holder to acquire one common share of the Company at an exercise price of $0.106 (US$0.08) per unit
for a period of 18 months from the closing date. The units shall be subject to a four month and one day hold period, expiring
on March 4, 2021. Consideration of $385,879 was recorded to warrant liability and the residual amount of $532,841 was
recorded to share capital.
On March 4, 2021, pursuant to the closure of a brokered private placement, the Company issued 45,045,929 units at a
price of $0.11 per unit for gross proceeds of $4,955,052. Each unit is comprised of one common share of the Company and
one common share purchase warrant. Each common share purchase warrant will be exercisable to acquire one common
share at an exercise price of $0.16 per common share until March 4, 2023. The units will be subject to a four month and
one day hold period expiring on July 5, 2021. Share issue costs included cash payments of $467,444 comprised of 7%
broker commission plus legal fees and the issuance of 3,153,214 Agent Options valued at $181,002 using the BlackScholes option pricing model with the following assumptions: a 2-year expected average life, share price of $0.11; 100%
volatility; risk-free interest rate of 0.28%; and an expected dividend yield of 0%. Consideration of $2,137,689 was recorded
to warrant reserve and the residual amount of $2,817,363 was recorded to share capital.
During the year ended July 31, 2021, the Company issued 75,203,138 common shares pursuant to the conversion of
$6,733,724 of convertible debentures and interest payable on the convertible debentures of $696,315. In relation to the
conversion $144,483 was reallocated from reserves to share capital and $7,574,521 was recorded as share capital
representing the accreted balance of convertible debentures net of transaction costs.

The Company had the following common share transactions during the year ended July 31, 2020:
•
•
•
•

•
•
•

On September 4, 2019, the Company issued 44,444 common shares pursuant to the conversion of $20,000 of convertible
debentures. In relation to the conversion $2,904 was reallocated from reserves to share capital and $18,766 was recorded
as share capital representing the accreted balance of convertible debentures net of transaction costs.
On September 19, 2019, the Company issued 291,901 common shares with a fair value of $106,544 as share-based
compensation to the Chairman of the Board.
On September 19, 2019, the Company issued 175,913 common shares with a fair value of $64,208 as share-based
compensation to the CEO.
The Company issued 20,169,007 common shares pursuant to the conversion of $1,914,000 of convertible debentures and
interest payable of $102,901. In relation to the conversion $40,525 was reallocated from reserves to share capital and
$2,016,901 was recorded as share capital representing the accreted balance of convertible debentures net of transaction
costs.
The Company issued 80,000 common shares upon exercise of stock options at a price of $0.15 per share for gross
proceeds of $12,000. In relation to the exercise of stock options $9,616 was reallocated from reserves to share capital.
The Company issued 3,376,588 common shares upon the exercise of warrants at a price of $0.35 per share for gross
proceeds of $1,181,806.
The Company received $10,000 related to a share issuance during the year ended July 31, 2019. The amount has been
allocated to share capital.
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13. SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)
d)

Reserves
The following is a summary of changes in reserves:

Balance, July 31, 2019
Share-based payments
Warrants issued for services
Convertible debenture modification
Reclassified on conversion of convertible
debentures
Reclassified on exercise of stock options and
Agents options
Balance, July 31, 2020
Share-based payments
Purchase of non-controlling interest
Warrants issued for share issue costs
Warrants issued on private placement
Agent Options issued on private placement
Reclassified on conversion of convertible
debentures
Balance at July 31, 2021

$

Stock
options
3,255,449
1,782,803
-

$

(9,616)
5,028,636
1,025,074
181,002
$

6,234,712

$

Convertible
debentures
1,808,319 $
(1,542,195)

Warrants
1,265,555
136,636
-

$

Total
6,329,323
1,782,803
136,636
(1,542,195)

(43,429)

-

(43,429)

222,695
-

1,402,191
182,703
836
2,246,795
-

(9,616)
6,653,522
1,025,074
182,703
836
2,246,795
181,002

(144,483)
78,212 $

3,832,525

$

(144,483)
10,145,449

e) Warrants
A summary of share purchase warrant activity is as follows:

Balance at July 31, 2019
Issued – services
Expired
Exercised
Balance at July 31, 2020
Issued - private placement
Issued - share issue cost
Issued - purchase of non-controlling interest
Expired
Balance at July 31, 2020

Number of
Warrants
50,287,316
650,000
(16,750)
(50,000)
50,870,566
64,220,949
40,250
3,700,000
(11,670,900)
107,160,865

Weighted Average
Exercise Price ($)
0.62
0.37
0.35
0.35
0.61
0.15
0.13
0.08
0.50
0.33

For warrants issued for services, the Company recorded an expense to professional fees during the year ended July 31, 2021
of $35,136 (2020 - $46,847) on the consolidated statement of loss for services received. On November 3, 2020, the Company
cancelled the warrants and fully recognized the remaining prepaid expense $67,629 (July 31, 2020 - $89,789) with respect to
prepaid services.
The following table summarizes share purchase warrants outstanding as at July 31, 2021:
Expiry date
September 14, 2021
September 3, 2022
September 3, 2022
May 3, 2022
March 4, 2023
June 13, 2024

Number of Warrants
39,199,666
5,255,020
40,250
13,920,000
45,045,929
3,700,000
107,160,865

Weighted Average
Exercise Price ($)
0.65
0.13
0.13
0.11
0.16
0.08
0.33

Weighted Average
Remaining Years
0.12
1.09
1.09
0.76
1.59
2.87
0.97
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13. SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)
The following table summarizes share purchase warrants outstanding as at July 31, 2020:
Expiry date
March 14, 2021
March 28, 2021
September 14, 2021
June 13, 2022

Number of Warrants
10,000,000
1,000,000
39,220,566
650,000
50,870,566

Weighted Average Exercise
Price ($)
0.50
0.53
0.65
0.37
0.61

Weighted Average
Remaining Years
0.62
0.66
1.12
1.87
1.02

f) Stock options
The Company has adopted a stock option plan (the "Plan") for its directors, officers, employees and consultants to acquire
common shares of the Company at a price determined by the fair market value of the shares at the date immediately
preceding the date on which the option is granted. The terms and conditions of the stock options are determined by the Board
of Directors.
The aggregate number of stock options granted shall not exceed 10% of the issued and outstanding common shares of the
Company at the time of shareholder approval of the plan, with no one individual being granted more than 5% of the issued and
outstanding common shares. In addition, the exercise price of stock options granted under the plan shall not be lower than the
exercise price permitted by the Canadian Securities Exchange (“CSE”), and all stock options granted under the plan will have
a maximum term of five years. A summary of stock option activity is as follows:
Number of
Options
17,196,666
8,050,000
(80,000)
(7,996,666)
17,170,000
21,250,000
(50,000)
(21,190,000)
17,180,000

Balance, July 31, 2019
Granted
Exercised
Forfeited
Balance, July 31, 2020
Granted
Expired
Cancelled
Balance at July 31, 2021

Weighted Average
Exercise Price ($)
0.41
0.35
0.15
0.36
0.40
0.09
0.50
0.25
0.20

The following table summarizes stock options outstanding and exercisable as at July 31, 2021:

Expiry date
October 5, 2021
August 16, 2022
February 15, 2023
August 6, 2025
November 8, 2025

Number of Options
1,730,000
1,800,000
750,000
1,600,000
11,300,000
17,180,000

Number of
Exercisable
Options
1,730,000
1,200,000
750,000
3,766,667
7,446,667

Weighted Average
Exercise Price ($)
0.55
0.35
0.65
0.08
0.10
0.20

Weighted
Average
Remaining
Years
0.18
1.04
1.55
4.02
4.28
3.38
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13. SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)
The following table summarizes stock options outstanding and exercisable as at July 31, 2020:

Expiry date
14-Nov-20
31-May-21
05-Oct-21
13-Jun-22
14-Jun-22
15-Aug-22
19-Jan-23
15-Feb-23
26-Feb-23
02-May-24

Number of Options
50,000
500,000
4,880,000
2,600,000
790,000
5,700,000
250,000
1,300,000
1,000,000
100,000
17,170,000

Number of
Exercisable
Options
50,000
500,000
3,253,333
2,600,000
790,000
1,900,000
83,333
1,300,000
333,333
100,000
10,910,000

Weighted Average
Exercise Price ($)
0.50
0.50
0.55
0.15
0.15
0.35
0.35
0.65
0.35
0.55
0.40

Weighted
Average
Remaining
Years
0.29
0.83
1.18
1.87
1.87
2.04
2.47
2.55
2.57
3.76
1.81

Share-based compensation expense recognized during the year ended July 31, 2021 of $1,025,074 (2020 - $1,782,803)
related to options granted and vested during the period. The Company granted 21,250,000 stock options during the year
ended July 31, 2021 (2020 – 8,050,000). The fair value of stock options was calculated using the Black-Scholes Option Pricing
Model using the following weighted average assumptions:
Risk-free interest rate
Expected life of options
Annualized volatility
Dividend rate
Weighted average fair value per option

2021
0.38%
5 years
100%
0%
$0.05

2020
1.39%
3 years
100%
0%
$0.21

The Company is utilizing an expected volatility figure based on a review of the historical volatilities, over a period of time,
equivalent to the expected life of the instrument being valued, of similarly positioned public companies within its industry. The
risk-free interest rate was determined from Canadian government zero-coupon bonds with a remaining term consistent with the
expected term of the instrument being valued.
g) Agent Options
A summary of Agent Option activity is as follows:

Balance, July 31, 2019
Expired
Balance, July 31, 2020
Granted
Balance, July 31, 2021

Number of
Options
2,198,112
(7,000)
2,191,112
3,153,214
5,344,326

Weighted Average
Exercise Price ($)
0.45
0.25
0.45
0.11
0.25
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13. SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)
The following table summarizes Agent Options outstanding and exercisable as at July 31, 2021:

Expiry date
September 14, 2021(1)
March 4, 2023(2)
(1)
(2)

Number of
Options
2,191,112
3,153,214
5,344,326

Number of
Exercisable
Options
2,191,112
2,191,112

Weighted
Average Exercise
Price ($)
0.45
0.11
0.25

Weighted
Average
Remaining
Years
0.12
1.59
0.99

Each Agent Option entitles the holder to acquire one unit. Each unit is comprised of one common share and one share
purchase warrant exercisable at $0.65 until September 14, 2021.
Each Agent Option entitles the holder to acquire one unit for $0.11. Each unit is comprised of one common share and one
share purchase warrant exercisable at $0.16 until March 4, 2023. The Agent Option is exercisable on or after July 5, 2021.

14. NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST
On November 4, 2020, the Company acquired the remaining 9% interest in AMA Pro from the holders to make the Company’s
share in AMA Pro 100% through the issuance of 3,700,000 share purchase warrants (note 13(e)). The share purchase
warrants were valued at $182,703 using the Black-Scholes option pricing model with the following assumptions: a 3.59 year
expected average life, share price of $0.075; 100% volatility; risk-free interest rate of 0.25%; and an expected dividend yield of
0%.
The carrying value of non-controlling interest for AMA Pro on November 4, 2020 was $nil. The excess of consideration above
the value of consideration of $182,703 was recorded as a direct charge to deficit.
The following table presents summarized financial information for the non-wholly owned subsidiaries as at July 31, 2021 and
2020:
July 31, 2021
Assets
Current
Non-current

$

Liabilities
Current
Non-current

5,983,237
18,246,417
24,229,654

July 31, 2020
$

3,597,027
21,110,905
24,707,932

771,719
12,814,254
13,585,973

707,797
13,801,919
14,509,716

Net assets
Non-controlling interest

$

10,643,681
(760,081) $

10,198,216
(910,138)

Revenues
Net loss

$
$

9,128,004 $
(669,039) $

6,225,206
(6,266,100)

15. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
a) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities
IFRS 13 establishes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value. The
hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities and the lowest
priority to unobservable inputs. The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are as follows:
Level 1:

Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities,
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Level 2:

Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability either directly (i.e.: as prices) or
indirectly (i.e.: derived from prices); and
Level 3:
Inputs that are not based on observable market data.
15. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
The carrying values of cash, receivables and accounts payable and accrued liabilities approximate their respective fair values
due to the short-term nature of these instruments. The fair value of convertible debentures approximates fair value due to the
short term nature of the remaining term.
b) Risk management
The Company is exposed in varying degrees to a number of risks arising from financial instruments. Management’s close
involvement in the operations allows for the identification of risks and variances from expectations. The Company does not
participate in the use of financial instruments to mitigate these risks and has no designated hedging transactions. The Board
approves and monitors the risk management processes. The Board’s main objectives for managing risks are to ensure
liquidity, the fulfillment of obligations, the continuation of the Company’s exploration activities, and limited exposure to credit
and market risks. There were no changes to the objectives or the process from the prior period.
The types of risk exposure and the way in which such exposures are managed are as follows:
i. Credit Risk
Credit risk primarily arises from the Company’s cash and receivables. The risk exposure is limited to their carrying amounts at
the statement of financial position date.
Cash is held as cash deposits on hand and deposits with financial institutions. The Company does not invest in asset-backed
deposits or investments and does not expect any credit losses. The Company periodically assesses the credit quality of its
financial institutions and is satisfied with the credit ratings of its banks.
Receivable primarily consists of trade receivables and GST credits. The objective of managing counterparty credit risk is to
minimize potential losses in trade receivables. The Company assesses the quality of its customers, taking into account their
credit worthiness and reputation, past performance and other factors. The Company does not expect significant credit losses
as the Company has not had bad debts in its history due to the regulated nature of the industry. The counterparty for the GST
credits is the government of Canada and therefore credit risk is low.
ii. Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they become due. The Company
ensures there is sufficient capital to meet short term business requirements. One of management’s goals is to maintain an
optimal level of liquidity through the active management of assets, liabilities and cash flows.
The following table summarizes the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities as at July 31, 2021:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Lease liability
Convertible debentures

Total

Within 1 years

1 - 5 years

$
1,381,208
13,636,208
4,234,819
19,252,235

$
1,381,208
459,553
4,234,819
6,075,580

$
1,178,680
1,178,680

Greater than 5
years
$
11,997,975
11,997,975

The Company’s cash is deposited in major banks, which is available on demand to fund the Company’s operating costs and
other financial demands.
iii. Currency Risk
The Company has administration in Canada and operations in the U.S. and is exposed to foreign exchange risk due to
fluctuations in the U.S. dollar and Canadian dollar. Foreign exchange risk arises from financial assets and liabilities
denominated in currency other than the U.S. dollar.
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15. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
The table below summarizes the net monetary assets and liabilities held in foreign currencies:
July 31, 2021
$
527,391

Canadian dollar net monetary liabilities

July 31, 2020
$
9,602,352

A change of 1% in the CAD/USD exchange rate would impact loss and comprehensive loss by $65,724. The Company has not
entered into any agreements or purchased any foreign currency hedging instruments to hedge possible currency risks at this
time. Management believes the foreign exchange risk derived from currency conversions is not significant, and therefore, does
not hedge its foreign exchange risk.
iv. Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates. The Company is not subject to any cash flow interest rate volatility as its and convertible debentures are
carried at a fixed interest rate throughout their term.
.
16. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT
The Company defines capital and reserves as equity. The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in
order to have the funds available to support its operating activities.
The Company’s objective when managing capital is to safeguard the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern in order
to pursue the development of its business. The Company manages its capital structure and adjusts it in light of changes in
economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust its capital structure, the
Company may issue new equity instruments, new debt, or acquire and/or dispose of assets. The Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern is uncertain and dependent upon the continued financial support of its shareholders, future profitable
operations, the lack of adverse political developments in the United States with respect to cannabis legislation and securing
additional financing.
Management reviews its capital management approach on an ongoing basis. There were no changes in the Company’s
approach to capital management during the periods presented. The Company is not subject to externally imposed capital
requirement.
17. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Key management personnel include those persons having the authority and responsibility of planning, directing, and executing
the activities of the Company. The Company has determined that its key management personnel consist of executive and nonexecutive members of the Company’s Board of Directors and corporate officers.
Key management personnel compensation for the years ended July 31, 2021 and 2020, was as follows:
Management and consulting fees
Wages and benefits
Directors’ fees
Shares issued for compensation
Share-based payments

$

$

2021
295,200
419,795
134,434
807,413
1,656,842

$

2020
763,716
1,285,993
179,349
170,752
1,236,973
3,636,783

$

2020
13,784

$

Other related party transactions for the years ended July 31, 2021 and 2020, were as follows:
Legal fees

$

2021
5,092
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Rent

$

5,092

47,921
61,705

$

18. SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE WITH RESPECT TO CASH FLOWS
The significant non-cash transactions and supplemental disclosure for the year ended July 31, 2021 were as follows:
•
•
•
•

Convertible debentures of $6,733,724 and interest payable on the convertible debentures of $696,315 were converted
into 75,203,138 common shares of the Company (notes 12 and 13(c)). In relation to the conversion $7,574,521 was
recorded to share capital and $144,483 was reallocated from reserves to share capital.
Share issue costs included $836 with respect to 40,250 warrants issued as finders fees (note 13(c)).
Share issue costs included $181,002 with respect to 3,153,214 Agent Options issued as finders fees (note 13(c)).
The Company made cash interest payments of $nil. No income taxes were paid.

The significant non-cash transactions and supplemental disclosure for the year ended July 31, 2020 were as follows:
•
•
•
•
•
•

Convertible debentures with a face value of $20,000 and carrying value of $15,862 were converted into 44,444 common
shares of the Company (notes 12 and 13(c)). In relation to the conversion $18,766 was recorded to share capital and
$2,904 was reallocated from reserves to share capital.
Convertible debentures with a face value of $1,914,000 and interest payable of $102,901 and combined carrying value of
$1,976,376 were converted into 20,169,007 common shares of the Company (notes 12 and 13(c)). In relation to the
conversion $2,016,901 was recorded to share capital and $40,525 was reallocated from reserves to share capital.
Reallocated $9,616 from reserves to share capital upon exercise of stock options (notes 13(d) and 13(f)).
Issuance of 650,000 share purchase warrants for professional services with a fair value of $136,636 (note 13(e)).
Pursuant to the adoption of IFRS 16, the Company recorded right-of-use assets with a cost of $1,832,615, accumulated
depreciation of $436,471 and lease liabilities of $1,539,523. The difference of $143,379 was recorded as a direct charge
to deficit.
The Company made cash interest payments of $622,050 in relation to the convertible debentures and $1,396,525 in
relation to the lease liability. No income taxes were paid.

19. GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATION EXPENSE
General and administration expense information for the years ended July 31, 2021 and 2020 is as follows:
Advertising, promotion and selling costs
Investor relations
Office expenses and general administration
License fees, taxes, and insurance
Travel and entertainment

$

$

2021
351,012
257,317
644,415
2,406,515
101,709
3,760,968

$

$

2020
2,036,251
1,565,252
2,923,094
1,854,273
274,232
8,653,102

20. OTHER INCOME
Other income is comprised of refunds received from the United States Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”) with respect to payroll
taxes for AMA and Infused for the year ended July 31, 2021 in the amount of $298,013 (US$236,792) (2020 - $nil).
21.DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
On August 15, 2019, the Company, through its wholly-owned subsidiary Legacy, signed a management services agreement to
provide operational and accounting services, as well as general management and oversight to Green Spectrum LLC (“Green
Spectrum”), a medicinal and recreational cannabis business licensee in the State of California in order to develop the
Company’s brands within the California market. The operation was discontinued during the year ended July 31, 2020 and as a
result Legacy will have no continuing involvement with Green Spectrum LLC. The components of net loss (income) from
discontinued operations included in these consolidated financial statements for the years ended July 31, 2021 and 2020 relating
to Legacy are as follows:
2021

2020
23

1933 INDUSTRIES INC.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
July 31, 2021 and 2020
(Expressed in Canadian dollars, except where noted)
$

Inventory expensed to cost of goods sold
General and administration
Depreciation
Loss on disposal of property and equipment

-

$

22. SEGMENTED INFORMATION

$

572,635
1,468,569
15,059
129,929
2,186,192

$

The Company operates in three segments, referred to as AMA, Infused MFG, and Corporate. AMA is focused on the
cultivation and sale of medical and adult use cannabis products, and Infused MFG is focused on the manufacturing of Hemp
derived CBD products. The corporate head office is located in Canada while the operations of AMA and Infused MFG are
located in the United States. All revenues are earned in the United States. All long-lived assets are located or owned in the
United States.
Segmented information for the year ended July 31, 2021 is as follows:
AMA
Revenue

$

Cost of Sales
Inventory expensed to cost of sales
Gross margin, excluding fair value
items
Fair value adjustment on sale of
inventory
Fair value adjustment on growth of
biological assets
Gross margin
Expenses
General and administration
Management and consulting fees
Wages and benefits
Professional fees
Share-based compensation
Interest expense
Accretion expense
Depreciation
Other income
Change in fair value of warrant liability
Impairment of property and equipment
Foreign exchange gain
Income (loss) from continuing
operations before income tax

9,128,004

Infused MFG
$

2,847,017

Corporate
$

Total
-

$

11,975,021

7,238,432

1,085,198

-

8,323,630

1,889,572

1,761,819

-

3,651,391

(1,985,587)

-

-

(1,985,587)

3,154,163
3,058,148

1,761,819

-

3,154,163
4,819,967

1,841,489
39,861
51,398
236,396
1,271,878
41,928
(238,023)
3,244,927

637,537
29,396
143,348
118,213
69,979
257,776
(59,990)
427,459
1,623,718

3,760,968
417,064
1,497,013
1,241,853
1,025,074
1,999,514
107,194
498,471
(298,013)
(5,733)
427,459
(45,474)
10,625,390

1,281,942
347,807
1,302,267
887,244
1,025,074
657,657
107,194
198,767
(5,733)
(45,474)
5,756,745

$

(186,779)

$

138,101

$

(5,756,745)

$

(5,805,423)

$

13,898,851
4,347,566
24,229,654
14,074,872

$

1,950,293
11,179,457
14,117,707
689,059

$

2,828,433
7,006,456
5,357,349

$

18,677,577
15,527,023
45,353,816
20,121,280

As at July 31, 2021
Property and equipment
Goodwill
Total assets
Total liabilities

$

$

$

$
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22. SEGMENTED INFORMATION (continued)
Segmented information for the year ended July 31, 2020 is as follows:
Year ended
July 31, 2020
Revenues

$

Cost of sales, including fair value
adjustments
Gross margin
Expenses
General and administration
Management and consulting fees
Wages and benefits
Professional fees
Share-based compensation
Interest expense
Accretion expense
Depreciation
Gain on debt modification
Foreign exchange loss (gain)
Loss from continuing operations before
income tax

Infused
MFG

AMA
6,225,206

$

5,737,319

6,877,765
(652,559)

2,800,086
2,937,233

2,126,193
356,873
1,324,811
1,805,338
326
5,613,541

2,746,502
984,908
242,111
36,159
175,446
4,185,126

Corporate
$

-

Total
$

11,962,525
9,677,851
2,284,674

3,780,407
947,546
3,237,848
526,619
1,782,803
1,269,901
1,067,107
204,856
(185,327)
(273)
12,631,487

8,653,102
947,546
4,222,756
1,125,603
1,782,803
2,630,871
1,067,107
2,185,640
(185,327)
53
22,430,154
(20,145,480)

$

(6,266,100) $

(1,247,893)

$

(12,631,487) $

$
$
$
$

16,427,815
4,683,090
24,707,932
14,509,716

2,413,779
12,017,618
17,266,676
1,384,237

$
$
$
$

3,253,248
4,609,862
11,238,335

As at July 31, 2020
Property and equipment
Goodwill
Total assets
Total liabilities

$
$
$
$

$
$
$
$

22,094,842
16,700,708
46,584,470
27,132,288

23. INCOME TAXES
A reconciliation of income taxes at statutory rates with the reported taxes is as follows:
The U.S. federal income tax expense is due to the fact that Canadian and U.S. losses are not able to be consolidated for tax
disclosure and reporting purposes.
Loss from continuing operations before income tax
Expected income tax recovery
Change in foreign exchange rates and other
Permanent differences
Adjustment to prior years provision versus statutory tax returns and expiry of
non-capital losses
Change in unrecognized deductible temporary differences
Total tax expense (recovery)
Income tax expense

$

$

2021
(5,805,423) $
(1,567,000)
259,000
1,171,000

2020
(20,145,480)
(5,439,000)
47,000
1,533,000

904,000
(285,000)
482,000 $
482,000

(1,252,050)
4,983,000
(128,050)
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-

Deferred tax recovery

(128,050)

23. INCOME TAXES (continued)
Tax attributes are subject to review, and potential adjustment, by tax authorities.
The significant components of the Company’s temporary differences, unused tax credits and unused tax losses that have not
been included on the consolidated statement of financial position are as follows:

Temporary differences:
Property and equipment
Lease liability
Financing fees
Investments
Debt with accretion
Non-capital losses available
for future period
Canada
USA

July 31, 2021

Expiry Date
Range

20,000
1,234,000
1,304,000
119,000
11,000

No expiry date
No expiry date
2042 to 2045
No expiry date
No expiry date

33,618,000
25,465,000
8,153,000

2035 to indefinite
2035 to 2041
Indefinite

$

$

$

$

July 31, 2020

Expiry Date
Range

20,000
2,596,000
1,305,000
119,000
405,000

No expiry date
No expiry date
2041 to 2044
No expiry date
No expiry date

33,686,000
24,078,000
9,608,000

2035 to indefinite
2035 to 2040
Indefinite

Section 280E of the Tax Code prohibits businesses from taking deductions or credits in carrying on any trade or business
consisting of trafficking in controlled substances which are prohibited by federal law. The IRS has invoked Section 280E in tax
audits against various cannabis businesses in the U.S. that are authorized under state laws, seeking substantial sums in tax
liabilities, interest and penalties resulting from underpayment of taxes due to the application of Section 280E. Under a number
of cases, the United States Supreme Court has held that income means gross income (not gross receipts). Under this
reasoning, the cost of goods sold is permitted as a reduction in determining gross income, notwithstanding Section 280E.
Although proper reductions for cost of goods sold are generally allowed to determine gross income, the scope of such items
has been the subject of debate, and deductions for significant costs may not be permitted. While there are currently several
pending cases before various administrative and federal courts challenging these restrictions, there is no guarantee that these
courts will issue an interpretation of Section 280E favorable to cannabis businesses. Thus, the Company, to the extent of its
“trafficking” activities (if applicable), and/or key contract counterparties directly engaged in trafficking in cannabis, may be
subject to United States federal tax, without the benefit of certain deductions or credits.
The Company recorded an income tax expense of $482,000 related to AMA despite the existence of net operating losses.
Cases before the federal courts have resulted in the denial of the application of net operating losses where Section 280E of
the Tax Code applies. This is an uncertain tax position and management will review the applicable case law and make a final
determination on the utilization of the net operating losses when filing the corporate income tax returns for the year ended July
31, 2021.
24. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
On August 8, 2021, 100,000 stock options with a weighted average exercise price of $0.075 were cancelled.
On August 26, 2021, 50,000 stock options with a weighted average exercise price of $0.35 were cancelled.
On September 14, 2021, 39,199,666 warrants with a weighted average exercise price of $0.65 expired unexercised.
On October 5, 2021, 1,730,000 stock options with a weighted average exercise price of $0.55 expired unexercised.
On October 29, 2021, 1,750,000 stock options with a weighted average exercise price of $0.48 were cancelled.
The Company issued 372,666 common shares pursuant to the conversion of $32,000 of convertible debentures and interest
payable on the convertible debentures of $5,267.
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